
Page 1 

5.1.25 PB Minutes.docx 

MAYWOOD PLANNING BOARD 

MINUTES 

May 1, 2025 

 

A regular meeting of the Maywood Planning Board was held on Thursday, May 1, 2025 in the Council 

Chambers of the Maywood Municipal Building, 15 Park Avenue, Maywood, New Jersey at 7pm.  “This 

Meeting was called pursuant to the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act.  Notice of this meeting 

was published in the Our Town and The Record newspapers on or about December 12, 2024.  In 

addition, copies of this notice were posted on the bulletin board in the Maywood Municipal Building at 

15 Park Avenue, filed with the Borough Clerk and distributed to all persons, if any, requesting copies of 

same pursuant to said act.  This meeting is being recorded with both audio and video and may be 

rebroadcast.  This meeting is a judicial proceeding, any questions or comments must be limited to the 

issues that are relevant to what the Board may legally consider in reaching a decision and decorum 

appropriate to a judicial hearing must be maintained at all times.” 

 

Flag Salute 

 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm with the following members present: 

Councilperson Douglas Herrick 

Chairperson Charlotte Panny 

Secretary Gary Neumann 

Cynthia Petersen 

John Gargagliano 

Harry Hillenius 

Thomas Lindenau 

Felicia Benson-Kraft 

Thomas Anzevino 

Board Attorney John Ferraro 

Board Engineer & Board Planner Gregory Polyniak 

 

Approval of Minutes 

John Gargagliano made a motion to accept the minutes from the February 6, 2025 meeting.  Thomas 

Lindenau seconded the motion.  All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion. 

 

Bills 

Cynthia Petersen made a motion to accept payment of the bills.  Chairperson Charlotte Panny seconded 

the motion.  All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion. 

 

Correspondence 

1. 4/9/25 letter from Joseph L. Basralian, Esq. Re: Unity Road Cannabis Shop Maywood 105 Essex 

Street Environmental Impact Statement Waiver Request 

2. 4/9/25 letter from Board Engineer/Planner Gregory Polyniak Re: Unity Road Cannabis Shop 

Maywood 105 Essex Street Completeness, Planning & Engineering Review 

3. 4/9/25 letter from Board Recording Secretary Tara Grunstra Re: Unity Road Cannabis Shop 

Maywood 105 Essex Street Hearing Date 5/1/25 

4. 4/11/25 letter from Stonefield Engineering Re: Optum Medical Care of NJ 1 Maywood Avenue 

Traffic & Parking Assessment Report 



Page 2 

5.1.25 PB Minutes.docx 

5. 4/21/25 letter from Board Engineer/Planner Gregory Polyniak Re: Unity Road Cannabis Shop 

Maywood 105 Essex Street Completeness, Planning & Engineering Review 

6. 4/24/25 letter from Zoning Officer Dina Lynch Re: Marie Rella 468 Golf Avenue Denial Letter 

7. 4/24/25 letter from Board Engineer/Planner Gregory Polyniak Re: Optum Medical Care of NJ 1 

Maywood Avenue Completeness, Planning & Engineering Review 

8. 4/30/25 email from Charles J. Rabolli Jr., Esq. Re: Optum Medical Care of NJ 1 Maywood 

Avenue Application Withdrawn 

 

Resolution The Grass Cab 

949 Spring Valley Road 

Block 1, Lots 2 & 4 

Calendar #2024-08 

Variance & Site Plan Application 

Variances 

Lot 2 

1-Minimum front yard setback (25’ required vs. 15.08’ 

existing/proposed) 

2-Minimum number of parking spaces (118 required vs. 114 

existing/proposed) 

3-Minimum number of ADA parking spaces (5 required vs. 2 

existing/proposed) 

4-Parking space dimensions (9’ x 18’ required vs. 7’ x 18’ 

existing/proposed) 

5-ADA parking space width (12’ required vs. less than 12’ 

existing/proposed) 

Lot 4 

1-Minimum front yard setback (25’ required vs. 24.40’ 

existing/proposed) 

2-Parking space dimensions (9’ x 18’ required vs. 8.85’ x 18’ proposed) 

3-ADA parking space width (12’ required vs. less than 8’ proposed) 

 

Councilperson Douglas Herrick made a motion to memorialize the resolution.  Harry Hillenius seconded 

the motion.  All eligible members voted in favor of the motion. 

 

Completeness Hearing None 

 

Application Hearing Unity Road Cannabis Shop Maywood LLC 

105 Essex Street 

Block 131, Lot 9 

Calendar #2025-03 

Variance & Site Plan Application 

Variances 

1-Maximum lot coverage (25% permitted vs. 27.1% existing/proposed) 

2-Parking space dimensions (9’ x 18’ required vs. 8’ x 18’ proposed) 

 

Joseph Basralian of Winne, Banta Basralian & Kahn represented the Applicant, Unity Road Cannabis 

Shop Maywood.  He explained that the use was permitted in this location.  He said that the Mayor and 

Council sent the Applicant to the Planning Board for recommendation to the governing body and site 



Page 3 

5.1.25 PB Minutes.docx 

plan approval.  He noted that the landlord has owned the property for 50 years and the lot coverage 

deviation was not an issue during that time.  He stated that the end cap store of the strip mall was 

remediated as there was contamination from a dry cleaner that occupied the space.  He noted that the 

store needed to be demolished to remediate and that it was being rebuilt exactly as it was.  He said that 

one of the principal owners, the Applicant’s planner and engineer would testify.  He explained that 

certain waivers were requested and Board Engineer Greg Polyniak had no objection to the waivers.  He 

provided an exhibit list with the exhibits already marked. 

 

Mr. Basralian called his first witness principal owner Dishen Patel who was sworn in.  Mr. Patel 

explained that Unity Road operated another cannabis dispensary in Franklin Township since August 

2023.  He said that all products arrive sealed in packages so there would be no odors emanating from 

them.  He stated that the hours would be 9am-9pm Monday-Saturday and 11am-7pm on Sunday.  He 

said the store would be busiest during the evening hours 6pm-9pm Monday-Saturday and 6pm-7pm on 

Sunday.  He stated that 9am-3pm are the slowest times in the store.  He said that the customers average 

5 minutes in the store and can preorder the product and pick up in the store.  He described that the 

customer would have their ID scanned before entering the store and that employees would be required to 

go through a background check.  He said that employees would be trained per the state guidelines and 

that the employees would come from the Franklin location initially.  Mr. Basralian displayed exhibit A-5 

a colorized version of the floor plan.  Mr. Patel detailed how different areas of the store would operate 

and identified security protocols.  He summarized that the store would comply with all state and local 

laws. 

 

Chairperson Charlotte Panny invited the Board to ask questions of Mr. Patel.  Cynthia Petersen inquired 

how the flex hub tables would be used.  Mr. Patel provided a picture of the table used in the Franklin 

store and said that the table would be used to display empty merchandise packaging.  Felicia Benson-

Kraft clarified that staff would enter and exit from one location.  Chairperson Panny asked about fire 

exits.  Mr. Patel replied that fire exit would be in the rear of the building.  Councilperson Douglas 

Herrick asked how many employees the store would have.  Mr. Patel answered that he would expect 6-7 

employees.  Councilperson Herrick inquired how many other businesses are in the strip and Mr. 

Basralian said that there were 4 stores in total; this store was still under construction, one was vacant and 

two were operating. 

 

Chairperson Panny invited Board Engineer/Planner Greg Polyniak to ask questions of Mr. Patel.  Board 

Engineer/Planner Polyniak confirmed that the Applicant would address any concerns raised by the Fire 

Department.  He then asked if the Applicant has discussed the proposed use with the Police Department 

and Mr. Patel answered that he had not.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak requested that Mr. Patel 

contact the Police Department and address any comments that they might have.  He added that should 

the Police Department determine that the dispensary would need an officer to direct traffic, the 

Applicant would be required to pay for the officer’s time.  Mr. Patel agreed.  Board Engineer/Planner 

Polyniak confirmed that the Applicant does not intend to install an odor control system.  He inquired if 

the Applicant would install an odor control system if there were complaints about the odor.  Mr. Patel 

agreed.  Mr. Basralian clarified that the complaints must be justified.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak 

agreed that the Health Department would evaluate any complaints.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak 

questioned if the Applicant would install an EV charging station.  Mr. Basralian stated that the Applicant 

does not intend to install an EV charger as it was not a requirement.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak 

confirmed that the Applicant has received an exemption from Bergen County.  He requested a copy of 

the letter. 

 



Page 4 

5.1.25 PB Minutes.docx 

Chairperson Panny confirmed that customers would not be permitted to use the products on the 

premises.  Mr. Basralian suggested signage that prohibits smoking within 50 feet of the building. 

 

Chairperson Panny invited the public to ask questions of Mr. Patel but no one came forward. 

 

Cynthia Petersen inquired about the proposed signage.  Mr. Patel said that the signage would have the 

business name on it.  Mr. Basralian said that all signage would conform to the Borough code.  Board 

Engineer/Planner Polyniak confirmed that the signage would meet the Borough requirement for size.  

Chairperson Panny confirmed that the signage would be illuminated. 

 

Mr. Basralian called his next witness engineer and planner Eric Keller of Bowman Consulting Group.  

Mr. Keller was sworn in, qualified and accepted.  He displayed the site plan dated 2/25/25, revised 

4/11/25 marked as exhibits A-1 through A-4.  He detailed the existing conditions and variances being 

sought.  He explained that there are no proposed changes to the building but repeated Mr. Basralian’s 

earlier statement that the store was demolished and rebuilt to remediate the contamination.  He discussed 

the checklist waivers that were requested.  He noted that they are proposing an ADA parking space and 

a ramp.  He said that the parking lot would be regraded to comply with ADA guidelines, resurfaced and 

restriped.  He explained that there was an area with 6 parking spaces that was not part of their property.  

He said that they will stripe the area in front of these parking spaces creating perpendicular parking 

spaces which patrons may parallel park in.  He stated that if they find evidence of an easement or lease, 

they would utilize the 6 parking spaces.  He will provide an as-built survey to Board Engineer/Planner 

Polyniak once construction was completed.  Mr. Keller then provided copies of the Bergen County 

exemption letter.  He said that the water and sewer demands would be less than the previous tenant that 

was a laundromat.  He said that the utility services were in good working order and requested to be 

exempt from televising the sewer lateral.  He discussed the proposed lighting plan which would deliver a 

minimum of a half a foot candle in the farthest portion of the parking lot.  He emphasized that the 

lighting would not spill onto adjoining properties.  He noted that the fire lane would not interfere with 

cars backing out of parking spaces.  He noted that the 2 perpendicular parking spaces measure 8’ wide 

but the remaining parking spaces are 9’ wide.  He said that the existing chain link fence on the outside of 

the eastern property line was not proposed to change. 

 

Chairperson Panny invited Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak to ask questions of Mr. Keller.  Board 

Engineer/Planner Polyniak asked that the sewer and water usage study calculations be added to the site 

plan and Mr. Keller agreed.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak requested that the sewer lateral be 

televised.  Mr. Basralian agreed to televise and make repairs if needed.  Regarding lighting, Board 

Engineer/Planner Polyniak suggested increasing the lighting to 1 foot candle for security purposes.  Mr. 

Keller answered that the parking spaces that have a half foot candle would not likely be used as they are 

the furthest from the store.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak asked if Mr. Keller would consider adding 

another fixture on the corner of the building to increase the illumination in the northeast corner of the 

property.  Mr. Keller is concerned that adding a fixture may cause light to spill onto the adjoining 

property.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak requested that the Applicant conduct a light meter reading 

to verify the half foot candle level should the application be approved and lighting be installed.  Mr. 

Keller reconsidered and agreed to add the light fixture. 

 

Chairperson Panny invited the Board to ask questions of Mr. Keller.  Councilperson Douglas Herrick 

confirmed that there was no access between the rear parking lot and the garden apartment parking lot.  

Thomas Anzevino asked when the last barrels of remediated materials would be removed and Mr. Keller 

did not know the answer.  Chairperson Panny inquired about cannabis waste and Mr. Basralian 



Page 5 

5.1.25 PB Minutes.docx 

explained that the cannabis waste would not be mixed with regular business waste.  Cynthia Petersen 

recalled seeing a waste space on the architectural drawing.  Mr. Patel said that any product that is 

damaged would be returned to the supplier or would be discounted for the staff to purchase.  Cynthia 

Petersen confirmed that the stop bar comment from Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak’s review was 

addressed.  Secretary Gary Neumann questioned if there was a turning restriction at the exit.  Mr. Keller 

replied that there was no turning restriction proposed.  Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak said that 

vehicles would not make a left at the exit as there is striping in the center median.  Mr. Keller said that 

the County exempted the application as there were no changes proposed.  Mr. Basralian said that he has 

not observed vehicles turning left from the property.  Councilperson Herrick suggested mentioning the 

legality of the left turn when the Applicant speaks to the Police Department.  Chairperson Panny 

confirmed that Sunday sales would be permitted despite the Bergen County blue laws.  Cynthia Petersen 

inquired about which party would be responsible for the façade and Mr. Basralian answered that the 

property owner would be responsible.  John Gargagliano clarified that the entire parking lot would be 

repaved and the sewer lateral would be televised.  Chairperson Panny confirmed that the applicant 

would not be presenting the front elevation exhibit.  Mr. Keller added that the façade had already been 

approved by the Building Department.  Board Attorney John Ferraro inquired about the parking space 

size variance.  Mr. Keller explained that 7 parking spaces are parallel and have the undersized width. 

 

Chairperson Panny invited the public to ask questions of Mr. Keller but no one came forward. 

 

Mr. Basralian said that he had no further testimony and thanked the Board for their time. 

 

Chairperson Panny invited the public to comment on the application but no one came forward. 

 

Mr. Basralian requested that there would be two votes for the Board; recommendation to the governing 

body and the site plan. 

 

Harry Hillenius made a motion for the Board to recommend the application to the Mayor and Council.  

Felicia Benson-Kraft seconded the motion.  John Gargagliano clarified that the Applicant agreed to 

comply with any recommendations from the Police Department.  All eligible members present voted in 

favor of the motion. 

 

Councilperson Douglas Herrick made a motion to approve the application.  John Gargagliano seconded 

the motion.  All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion. 

 

Informal Hearing None 

 

Closed Session None 

 

Old Business None 

 

New Business 

• Distribution of Calendar #2025-03 Unity Road Cannabis Shop Maywood 105 Essex Street 

Additional Application Materials 

• Distribution of Calendar #2025-04 Marie Rella 468 Golf Avenue Variance Application 

• Cynthia Petersen asked Board Recording Secretary Tara Grunstra to check with Zoning Officer 

Dina Lynch regarding the Kine Buds signage covering the windows 



Page 6 

5.1.25 PB Minutes.docx 

o Councilperson Herrick said that he thought it was a state regulation and John Gargagliano 

concurred 

• Chairperson Panny inquired about the hearings for the next meeting on 5/22/25 

o Board Recording Secretary advised that there were two public hearing scheduled; Area in 

Need of Redevelopment Study and the Round 4 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan 

 

 

Open Meeting to the Public 

 

Adjournment 

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Harry Hillenius.  John Gargagliano seconded the motion.  

All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:22pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Tara Grunstra 

Planning Board Recording Secretary 


